Council

AGENDA
Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Tuesday, 26th October, 2010, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
TN2 Community Centre Centre, Greggs Telephone 01622 694342
Wood Road Sherwood, Tunbridge Wells

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

Membership

Mr M J Harrison  (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr R Brookbank,
Mr S J G Koowaree and Mr R A Pascoe

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership

Conservative (4) Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman),
Mr R E Brookbank, Mr R A Pascoe

Liberal Democrat (1) Mr S J G Koowaree

2. Declarations of Interest for Items on the agenda for this meeting

3. Application to register land at the former Council Offices, Cranbrook as a new
Village Green (Pages 1 - 24)

4. Application to register land at Sherwood Lake in Tunbridge Wells as a new Town
Green (Pages 25 - 48)

5. Other items that the Chairman decides are Urgent.

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass

Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
(01622) 694002

Monday, 18 October 2010






_Agenda ltem 3 -

Apphcatron to register land at the former Council Offices srte
at Cranbrook as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Councrls"
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Tuesday .’26th October 2010.

'Recommendatlon I recommend that the County Council informs the applicant

that the application to register the land at the former Council Offices site at

‘Cranbrook as a new Village Green has not been accepted

" Local Members: Mr. R. Manning Unrestricted item

lntroduction

1. The County Council has received an appllca’non to register land .at the former

Council Offices in the parish of Cranbrook as a new Village Green from local
resident and ‘Borough Councillor Dr. L. Hall (“the Applicant”). The application,
dated 8™ August 2009, was allocated the application number VGA615. A plan of

* the site is shown at Appendix A to this report and a copy of the application form
is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons: Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons

Régistration Authority to register land as a Village Green where lt can be shown
that: :
‘a’ significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a ‘locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests: ‘
. Use of the land has continued ‘as of right until at least the date of
application (sect|on 15(2) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or '
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulatlons the Applicant must notlfy the
"landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper -
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council's
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the

Page 1



County Council also places copies of the notice on site to prov;de local people

‘with the’ opportunlty to comment on the application. The publicity must state a

period of at least six weeks during which objectlons and representations can be

" made.

The application site

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) is known locally
as the former Council Offices site and is situated at the junction of the High Street
and Wheatfield Drive in the village of Cranbrook. The site is approximately 0.3
hectares (0.75 acres) in size and consists of a large building, parking areas to the
front and rear, and is landscaped with smaller grassed areas. Formal access to
the site is via a vehicular gate to the front of the building off the High Street and
another vehicular gate to the rear of the bundlng off Joyce Close.

7. The application site is shown in more detail on the plan at Appendix A.
The case
The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has

8.

become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the
local inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20
years.

Included in the apphca’uon were 48 user. evidence questionnaires from local
residents detailing their use of the application site for at least 20 years and, in
several cases, for over 40 years. A summary of the evidence in support of the
application is attached at Appendix C.

ansultations

10.Consultations have been carried out as requiréd. The following responses have

11

been received.

.The Cranbrook and Sissinghurst Parish Council has objected to the application on

the following grounds:

e Since constructed and until its closure, the appllcatlon site was. constantly in
use as a working office building, housing Council services and the Citizens
Advice Bureau. Whilst the Borough Council did allow, upon payment, some
community activities within the building, it remained a working Council office;

e Whilst on occasions local youths have used the car park for unauthorised
skating and cycling, this has been confined to the times when offices were
closed and despite a locked front gate;

o The lawned area will only ever have been used extremely rarely as a spot for
plcnlckmg as it is within 8ft of the busy High Street vehlcular traffic;

e There is no right of way across the car park; and

e Whilst the car park has been used for civic occasions, such as an assembly
point for parades, permission for the use has been granted by the Borough.
Council.

Page 2



2. Mr. A. Bringloe, a former employee of the Tunbrldge Wells Borough Council who
was based at the site, wrote to express his support for the application. Mr.
Bringloe was a senior Officer responsible for the day-to-day management of the
site between 1992 and 2006. He states:
¢ The public have always used the site “as of right”;

o People have always exercised their dogs and walked through the site from
Joyce Close since at no time were any gates closed; ‘

e Children have always played on all parts of the site, which was popular for
skate-boarding and roller-skating; and

e The land was not fenced off and people were not deterred from walking on the
land. '

Landowner

13.The application site is owned by the Tunbrrdge Wells Borough Council (“the

Borough Council”). Objection has been made to the application by the Borough

Council on the following grounds:

e The activities relied upon are in the main activites which are not of a
recreational nature and took place within the building. They do not constitute
‘lawful sports and pastimes’ for the purposes of the relevant legislation;

o The application site includes the Council offices and its circulation space and
car park. Until 2006, these areas were in active use by the Council and as
such the application site was not capable of use for any activity which could be
regarded as a lawful sport or pastime;

o If the application site was used for recreational purposes (whlch is refuted by
the Borough Council), these. actrvrtles were, of necessrty, .occasional and
sporadic;-

e Several of the user evidence forms refer to use of the application site as a
short cut. Such use does not amount to a lawful sport or pastime;

o The applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is a relevant Iocallty or a
neighbourhood within a locality; and

e Use of the application site has not been ‘as of right’ as notices were erected in
2008 stating that the site was private property and that there was no publlc
right of access through the car park.

History of the site

14.The site, which formed part of a larger area, was originally acquired by the former

Cranbrook Rural District Council in the late 1950s. The building was officially’

opened in 1962 and, in 1974, following local Government re-organisation, the site

- was transferred to Tunbrldge Wells Borough Council. Over time, the size of the
site has' reduced as various parts have been sold off for other purposes.

15.In recent years, the burldmg on the site has been used as offices for various
Borough Council departments (including Planning and Highways) as well as a
meeting venue for Council Committees. It has also provided public access to
Council services (such as the payment of Council tax and collection of bus
passes) and was used by many community groups and services, with space
being let to organisations such as Age Concern and the Citizen’s Advice Bureau.

Page 3 -



" 16.In February 2006, a decision was taken by the Borough Council to close the -

building. Since that time, the various Council departments and organisations that
used site have been gradually vacated. In August 2009, a Special cabinet

" meeting approved the demolition of the building and, in October of the same year,

the building was finally.closed and windows boarded up. To this day, the building
remains on site pending the outcome of the-Village Green application..

Preliminary considerations

17.Members will nofe that a sighificant proportion of the application site

(approximately ‘30%) is occupied by a building of a commercial nature. This

. element of the application requires special consideration.

18.0n this issue, the Borough Council is. of the view that an application to register

land upon which a building is located is “manifestly outside the scope and
intention of the Commons Act 2006"". The applicant’s position, on the other hand,
is that the Commons Act 20086 includes any building on land or a site designated
as a Village Green and that such a building becomes part of the designation. She
adds that, in her view, “the presence of a building is not a deterrent to deciding in
favour of the applicant’?. ‘

19.The legislation is silent in this respect: the Commons Act 2006 does not define

the term “land” and its predecessor, the Commons Registration Act 1965, defined
land simply as “includes land covered with water’®. The only recent authority in
relation to the type of land that is capable of registration as-a Village Green is the.
case of Oxfordshire?, in which it was held that there was no requirement for land
to conform to the traditional image of a Village Green in order to be capable of
registration provided that the relevant legal tests have been met. However, this
case was concerned with an area of scrubland and did not refer to buildings.

20.1t is therefore necessary to adopt a purposive approach and to consider what

Parliament's intention was in enacting the legislation. In Sunningwell®, Lord
' Hoffman described the position as follows: ‘

"The main purpose of the Act of 1965 was to preserve and improve
common land and town and village greens. It gave effect to the Report
of the Royal Commission on Common Land 1955-1958 (1958) (Cmnd
462) which emphasised the public importance .of such open spaces.
Some commons and greens were in danger of being encroached upon
by developers because of legal and factual uncertainties about their
status. Others were well established as commons or greens, but there
was uncertainty about who owned the soil ..."

21.1t is clear from this passage that the Commons Registration Act 1965 was

concerned with the preservation of open spaces. Indeed, the Royal Commission

' See Tunbridge Wells Borough Council statement of objection (undated but received on 04/04/10) at

P

aragraph 12
See applicant's response to objection from TWBC (undated but received on 18/07/10)

® Section 22, Commons Registration Act 1965 :
* Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] 1 Al ER 817 (HL) - -
5 R v Oxfordshire County Council ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385 at 388

Page 4



report itself refers to the need to preserve, in the public interest, “the last reserve
of uncommitted land in England and Wales"®. As such, it can be concluded that it

~was not Parliament's intention for commercial buildings to be registered as a

22.

23.

24.

25,

Village Green.

Furthermore, the proposition that a commercial building could be registered as a
Village Green does not sit comfortably with the Victorian statutes that protect
Village Greens. In particular, under the Commons Act 1876, it is an offence and a-
public nuisance to encroach upon or inclose a Village Green, or to erect any
structure unless it is for the purpose of the better enjoyment of the Village Green.
The Victorian statutes clearly envisage that a Village Green will generally be an
open space that it to be kept free of structures (save, perhaps, for small structures
associated with the recreational use) and indeed it is on this basis that many
Village Green applications are made. Buildings, on the other hand, are the subject
of ‘a separate statutory scheme under the Planning (Listed Buildings -and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. ’

Even if a commercial building were to be capable of registration as a Village
Green under this legislation, it is clear that the Council Offices themselves have
not been used “as of right” (i.e. without force, secrecy or permission). '

The applicant states, quoting Mr. Bringloe, that groups had unrestricted access to
the building as well as to the site, adding that the building and the land were both
open to the entire community of Cranbrook. Whilst access may have been
unrestricted in the sense that selected groups had their own keys to the building
to gain access outside of Council operating hours, the very fact that.those
organisations were provided with keys is a clear indication that their use was with
the consent of the Council. This is also evidenced by copies of invoices for the
payment of a fee in respect of the use of the premises’.

It is therefore inconceivable that members of the general public (i.e. those un-
associated with the groups using the site or the Council itself) would have been
able to wander off the street and into all areas of the building as and when they
pleased. Particularly during the time that Council departments were operational at
the site, it would have been, at best, irresponsible and negligent for all areas of

" the building to be left completely unlocked and unattended during evenings and

26.

weekends. In that latter sense, access to the building was thus not unrestricted
and use of it was by invitation and not “as of right”. '

It is therefore suggested, for the reasons described above, that the building itself
is not capable of registration as a Village Green. However, this leaves the area of
land which surrounds the building (composed of the car park and formal
landscaping). If it is found that the legal tests are met in respect of the remaining
land, then it would be possible for the County Council to register a lesser area
than that originally applied for®.

® Report of the Royal Commission on Common Land 1955 — 1958
- T Kumon Maths Class invoice dated 07/07/09 for hire of Council Chamber, Cranbrook

°R

(McAlpine Homes Ltd.)-v-Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 (Admin) at paragraphs 79,

80 and 82

Page 5



Legal tests

27.In dealing Wlth an application to reglster a new Town or anlage Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'? A

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

" (c) Whether use has been by a significant number of mhabltants of a particular

locality, or a ne/ghbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections
15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:

- (a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

28.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right' has been considered by the House of

Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell® case, it is considered that ifa’
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or

permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop him

or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then nghts are acquired and

further use becomes ‘as of right'.

29.In this case, there is no reference in the user evidence submitted in support of the

31.

application to any challenges to use prior to the recent erection of notices and
locking of gates when use of the building ceased. According to the user evidence,
the access gates were locked and ‘private land’ notices were erected in
approximately 2008 or 2009.

30.The Borough Council contents that use of the application site has not been ‘as of

right’ because during 2008, after the use of the application site as Council Offices
ceased, notices were erected on the site stating ‘private property’ and ‘no pubhc
right of access through the car park’. The applicant states that the erection of the
notices did not deter use of the application site.

It does not matter if users ignore the notices and continue to use the application
site. The requirement for use to have been without force extends beyond physical
force and if users lgnored notices then their use would have been contentious and
thus not ‘as of right . The critical issue is therefore the wording of the notices
and the message conveyed to the users of the land. The ‘private property’ sign
was affixed to the building rather than at entrance gates and arguably could have
been interpreted by users as applying only to the building. The ‘no right of access
through the car park’ could be interpreted as referring to the use of the land as a

% R v. Oxfordshire County.Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385 (HL)

1% Smith v Brudenell Bruce [2002] 2 P&CR 4

Page 6 |



short-cut rather than for general re'créational pur_poses”. It is therefore unlikely
“that the notices, by themselves, were sufficient to render use of the application
site not ‘as of right’.

32.The Borough Council also states that when trespassers .were occasionally
witnesses on the site, they were expressly asked by the caretaker and other staff
to leave. This is supported by a statement by the current Facilites Manager.
However, this evidence is, to a degree, contrary to that of Mr. Bringloe, who

asserts that recreational use of the site was never challenged whilst he was

- responsible for the site. It is possible to reconcile these two accounts by the fact
that the current Facilites Manager only took up her post after Mr. Bringloe’s
departure in 2006 which may have resulted in a change in policy.

:33.1n the absence of any evidence to the contrary, it can be concluded that use of
the application site (insofar as it relates to the land surrounding the building) was
‘as of right' until the erection of the notices in 2008. However, as stated at
paragraph 25, use of the building itself has not been ‘as of right’.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the pilrposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

34.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that.
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities'?.

35.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’™®.

- 36.The evidence of use submitted in support of the application is summarised at

Appendix C. It can be 'seen that the overwhelming majority of use of the
application site falls within one of three categories: parking on the site, using the
site as a cut-through to and from Joyce Close, and activities that are directly
related to the Council or the use of the building.

37.Parking is not a lawful sport or pastime and, indeed, were the land to be
registered it would become unlawful by virtue of the registration ™.

" In R (Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire mental health NHS Foundation Trust) v Oxfordshire County
Council [2010] EWHC 530 (Admin), a notice stating ‘no public right of way' was held to refer only to
the assertion of a public right of way and not sufficient to defeat an application for Village Green
status. _ )

12 R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385 (HL)

13 R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999]
3 All ER 385 . .

4 gection 34 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 makes it a criminal offence to drive over or park on land not
forming part of a road without lawful authority. : ’

Page 7



38.Using the site as a cut-through is not a lawful sport or pastime as it is indicative of

a public rights of way type user along a linear route rather than a general right of
recreation across the whole of the site. In the case of Laing Homes'®, it was held
that footpath-type use should be disregarded: “it is important to distinguish
between use that would suggest to a reasonable landowner that the users
believed they were exercising a public right of way to walk, with or without dogs...
and use that would suggest to such a landowner that the users believed that they
were exercising a right to indulge in lawful sports and pastimes across the whole
of the fields’. In Oxfordshire™, Lightman J suggested that “... if the position is
ambiguous, the inference should generally be drawn of exercise of the less
onerous right (the public right of way) rather than the more onerous (the right to
use as a green)’. '

39.Finally, reference is made in the User evidence to activities such as ‘visiting the

planning office to make inquiries on Council matters'"’, ‘visiting groups who had
rooms in the building’™®, ‘access to the Citizens Advice Bureau’®, and ‘using

‘Council facilities'®. These are referred to at Appendix C as ‘Council-related use'.

Such uses are not.lawful sports and pastimes for the purposes of section 15 of
the Commons Act 2006. Furthermore, uses which are associated with the various
groups who used the site for organised gatherings would not have been ‘as of
right' since such use would have been with the knowledge and permission of the

- Council.

40.The test for the quality of the user has been set out recently by the Supreme

41.

Court in the Redcar®' case: “if the user for at least 20 years was of such amount
and in such manner as would reasonably be regarded as being the assertion of a
public right... the owner will be taken to have acquiesced in it’. This means that
the applicant must demonstrate that there is an established pattern of use, and
that such use was of such a manner as to indicate to the landowner that it
consisted of the assertion of a public right; use which is trivial or sporadic will not
carry the outward appearance of the assertion of a public right®2.

In this case, once user for the three categories described above is excluded,
there remains little actual evidence of use for informal recreational purposes. Of
the 48 user evidence questionnaires submitted in support of the application, 37
refer only to parking, footpath-type or Council-related uses. This leaves 11 people

~ who have used the land for other purposes. Of those, 4 people have used the site

only for ‘meeting friends’ or ‘chatting to friends’ and it is unclear as to whether

such use was ancillary to the use of the building. One person refers to using the
site to play as a youngster which would have been outside of the relevant twenty-
year period. The remaining users refer to only occasional use for recreational
purposes (or do not state the frequency of use at all) and only one person states
that they have used the land on a weekly basis over the last 48 years for the
purposes of playing with children.

'S R (Laing Homes Ltd.) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70 at 79 per Sullivan J

16 Oxfordshire first instance at para 102 ’ '

'7 See user evidence questionnaire of Mrs. E. Link

18 See user evidence questionnaire of Mrs. J. Martin-Gutkowska

19 See user evidence questionnaire of Mrs. M. Mullen ’

20 gee user evidence questionnaire of Mrs. A. Warren : :
' R (Lewis) v Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council [2010] UKSC11 at paragraph 67 per Lord Hope
2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385 (HL)

Page 8



42.0n a careful analysis of the evidence, it is therefore clear that there has been
some use of the application site for lawful sports and pastimes, but the vast
majority of use has been for non-recreational purposes. Such use as there has
been for informal recreational purposes has been infrequent and unlikely to
amount to the assertion of a public right of general recreation across the whole of
the application site. C

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

43.The right to use a Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality or of a
neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to define
this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified. '

44.The definition of locality for the purposes of a Village Green application has been
the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders?® case, it was considered that *...at the very
least, Parliament required the users of the land to -be the inhabitants of
somewhere that could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my
judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge
later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality should normally
constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the county’.

45.At part 6 of the application form, the Applicant specifies the locality by reference
to the location of the site and surrounding roads: “part of the parish of Cranbrook”.
This is not a legally recognised administrative boundary and thus would not
satisfy the requisite legal test. However, the application site does fall within the
administrative parish of Cranbrook and Sissinghurst which is recognised at law
and would be capable of constituting a locality for the purposes of the tests in
section 15 of the Commons Act 2006. o

' 46.Having established a relevant locality, it is also necessary to consider whether the
use of the application site has been by a significant number of the residents of
that locality. The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or
substantial: ‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant
number of the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to
properly be described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters
is that the number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to
indicate that the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation
rather than occasional use by individuals as trespassers’®*. Thus, what is a -
‘significant number’ will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each
-case depending upon the location of the application site..

47.In this case, the application is supported by 48 user evidence questionnaires.
However, as stated above, the majority of the use referred to does not consist of
informal recreational use. As such, the application site has not been used by a
significant number of the residents of the locality for lawful sports and pastimes.

3 R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd. ) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 80
24 R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 9



(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of

appllcatlon or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 1 5(3) or(4)?

48.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the application site to have taken place
‘as of right' up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the
- making of the application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections
15(3) and 15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above)

. 49.Recreational use ceases to be ‘as of right' when it is no longer without force,

without secrecy or without permission. So, for example, if a fence is erected but
people continue to access the site by breaking down the fence or climbing over it, .
then subsequent use is considered to be with force and as such is not ‘as of right’.

50.In this case, there is evidence of notices having been erected on the appllcatlon
site as well as the main access gates being locked prior to the application belng
made in September 2009%°.

51.As stated above, it is uncertain what the true effect of the notice was on the use of
the land. However, the locking of the access gates did constitute a clear and overt
challenge to use and the user evidence suggests that this act materially
lhterrupted the use of the site for recreational purposes. The locking of the gates,
according to the user evidence (although it is disputed by the Council), did not
occur until 2008. Therefore, it is considered that the date upon which user as of
right ceased was 2008. ,

52.Use did not therefore continue ‘as of right' until the date of the application, but
would fall within the exception set out in 15(3) of the Commons Act 2006, namely
that use ‘as of right’ ceased within two years of the date of the application.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

53.1n order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has

been used for a full period—of-twentyyears.—The periodof twenty years is

calculated retrospectively either from the date of the application (in cases where
use ‘as of right’ has not ceased) or from the date at which use of the application
site ‘as of right’ ceased.

54:Having established that use of the application site ceased to be ‘as of right’ from
2008, the relevant twenty-year period (“the material period”) is 1989 to 2009. -

55.0f the eleven people who have used the application site for informal recreational -
purposes, all but one appear to have used it during the relevant period. Therefore,
there has been very limited use of the application site for informal recreational
purposes for a period of at least 20 years but, as stated above, this use would not
have been of a nature or frequency sufficient to amount to the assertion of a
public right over this period. »

% Note that the application is dated August 2009 but was not formally accepted by the County Council
as being duly made until September 2008.

Page 10



Conclusion

56.From close cons&deratlon of the evidence submitted, it has been concluded that
the legal tests concerning the registration of the land as a Village . Green (as set
-out above) have not been met.

Recommendation
57.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applieant that the app[ic'ation to

* register the land at the former Council Offices site at Cranbrook as a new Village
Green has not been'accepted. -

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent. gov uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email; melanie. mcnelr@kent gov. uk

The main file is avanlable for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste -
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B —Cepy: of application form
APPENDIX C Summary of user ewdence in support of the apphcatlon

Page 11




136000200000

135900200000

577100

APPENDIX A:

Plan showing application site

7\ Station .

X
\ et

[

N

\ o

a1 RN rThe‘C_atholic/ B

=T
1 35900000600

13600020700

f—% ' B : o \\ / g
el " 1. -\ . Churchof| g
S RV T 5 5 : : S -]
2 | this r\r\a'p iS\basé\d u f’oﬁOrdannce Sufvey.m teratng%b\st%g'}zen\T\ission o%ré‘r;g%gggvree &
2} on benhalf of the Co trétlér«..ef:.4er;Majesty's‘ tationery Office (c) Grown Copyright : 5 ' Sy
l.!_nauthc{ris‘e,éd r\eprod cioﬁ;i,nfri_rjges‘prownc pyright and may Iead\tp prosecution or civil proceedings. Scalé 1 1250
Licence Quq\mbfung?ma [2010] \ . N ol 1ePY
T
577100 cvenie 577200000000
Land subject to Village Green application at the former
Cranbrook Council Offices site, High Street, Cranbrook
Scale 1:1250 / /&/u///




| APPENDIX B:

) .:":"‘i{. | ” ) V |
FORM CAS | Copy of the application form

Commons Act 2006: section 15

‘»Ap[@ilicfa‘iti@n for the registration of land
| as anew Town or Village Green |

This section is for office use-only

1 ‘Official stamp of the Registration Authority o »
indicating date of receipt: - o Application number:

COMMONS ACT 2006 = |
KENT COUNTY'GO_UNG)L o
BREGISTRATION AU”z"-lalOFﬂ'l”Y ;

08 SEP 2003 | | VG numberaliocated at regisiration
| S (it application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the ‘Comm_onsApvts‘ZDfQB ;(chahge_s fo the commons registers):.
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note-the following:. : '

o All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

o Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete: |

parts 7 and:8. Any person cai apply_‘to;:re‘gi_s?tje,r-ila‘nd“asrfa'gﬁreén*Wh‘ere?the:critema;fgrfrég_i's’tj_ﬁraﬁon:’_i‘n
© section 15(2), (3)-or (4)-apply. Co _ o

° AppjliAcants applying for voluntary registration under ée‘étion.'1:5(8)’:shou!d, in-addition, complete part
' 9. Only the owner of theland can apply under section 15(8). ' ‘ :

o There is no fee for applicaﬁons_un‘dérseCEiofns 15.

| Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority
Insert name of Commons
_ Registration Authority : To the:

- Page 13



"Nofe 2
- Ifthere is more than one ]
~applicant, list all names. Usea

separate sheet if necessary.
State: the full title of the
organisation if the applicantisa
hody gorporate or

unincorporate. Ifyousupply an |

email address in the hox

- provided, you may receive

communications from-.the
Reglstration Authority or other
persons {e.g. objectors)via

~email. If part 3 is not completed |

all coriaspondence and notices:
will be sent to the first named
applicant. '

| Full postal address: |4+ Grt + res Prb/@’\r\\$/

| 'VVTe’lejphonef number: -

2. Name and address of the applicanf

{incl. Po_s._tcocle')-(:L 2L D/Tﬂ\\ o Rz ‘
CRkmbRoole, i’ e

G180~ 24D b 9

(incl. national dialling code)

Fax-number:
{incl: national dialling code)

E-mail address: Lrndi e /{/wv?f\, L)\'JTA‘PQAAS‘ L CouA

Note 3 - _ :
This part should be completed if
a representative; e:g. & solicitor; -
is-instructed for the-purposes of

- thie application. 1f so all

correspondence-and notices will

be sent to-the person.orfirm

named here. If you supply-an
emall address inthe:hox .

__ provided, you.may receive
- communications from the
| Registration Authority.or other
- persons (e.g. ohjectors) via
~ emall. o

| Full postal address:

3. Name and address of representative, if any
‘Name: - |

Fitm:

(incl. Postcode) .

' T'e”tebh‘@‘ne inu‘mbel":

(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number: |
(inel. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 4 _

. Forfurther details of the
requirements-of an application
referto Schedule 4, paragraph
9 to the Comimons Registration
(England) Regulations 2008.

*| Section 15(4) applies:

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily. toregister your
land please tick this box and move:to. question 5. Application made
undaer section 15(8): ' i '

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please ticlk
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection-and .
qualifying criterion applies to the case. '

Section 15(2) e‘ipplies:’.
- Section 156(3) applies:

[ pake

Paesk il Godstnes o Ploscsgig

e el pa e Vi



*Section 15(6) enables any .
period of statutory closute
where access fo the land is
denied to be d/sregalded in

. determining the 20. year period.

| be dlsregarded

If section 15(3) o (4) applies, please indicate ’the date on-which you -

consider that use 'as of right ended and why‘*lw"*

(Chcldrens & ‘obﬂmt(ua, lad « sl s AR -

ok g «Jcoma»s fo é(\g/t ‘13 sead i
u'\e«q%u’ (Lz?,uQ Ao
acfpy peging o Cov «( h

i sec@on 15(6)* is bemg‘rehed ‘up‘ ind | eri
| years;: indicate the period of: statutory closure (lf any) wh|ch needs to L

/-\

".':f(‘x vaU’{f) fa(’_ el

ote 5

- This part is to identify the new

~ green. The accompanying map

- musthe atascaleofatleast

| 1:2,500.and shows the. laridby
| means.of distinctive colouring:

- within-an accurately identified

boundary, State the Land

“Registry title numbér where

known.

5. Descrlptlon and part!culars of the area of land m respect of
which’ apphcatmn for: reglstratmn is- made '

fName by Wthh usually known

0 Vrcsuon 64 uf_ L._ |

Please: t:ck the box to conﬂrm that you have attached a map of the |
land (at:a scale of at' least 1:2,500): : B '

, Note 6
It may be possible to: lndrcate

the locality of the green: by

area, such as a parish or
electoral ward, or other area

. suff/mently defined by name
(such as a village). If this is not

possible a map- ‘should be
provided on which a locality or
nelghbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000. .

1 6. Locahty or. nelghbourhood wnthm a locahty m respect of
‘which the application is made.

reference-to an-administrative. '

Indicate the locality (or neighbeurho dthhln the loc "Ilty) to Wthh the
| ¢laimed green relates by wiiting t dmmustrat:ve area or ,
‘geographical area by name below and/or by attachmg. a map-on:

| which the area is cleally marked

ol

A g}/ ioc\mg( ﬂ,ﬁ\:&i«m

Please tick here if a map is attached (ata sc,ale:_,df-1‘»:1:»0,@,00.@),:’ O

. Paage 15
v‘-vv LA~ 4




Note 7

Applicants should. plowde a
summary of the case for
registration-here and enclose a
“separate full statement-and all
other evidence including any
withess statements in-support of .
the apphoat/on ,

This information is not needed.if
a landowner is-applying to-

" registerthe land as a green
under section 15(8).

&—Q_O./ A’P{ Q\/LLOVL\C 1

e e o it

kﬁrﬂ Mmﬂ/&%( )

P»Z,g?@& L\L,-Q/U/J.Q—o 2.7k = W lcQQ/\l‘d‘A"‘Jq Py :
» /@M TGS T Y AL < /)ffh«»«dg/l:({-— /(:\«J(.dl@\’ M(.L.-;\_, :
%é,&u(ﬂ—t'\.{)

he

7. Justnfmatlon for apphca‘i‘.lon t0: ieglster the land as-a Town or
Village Green

w2 (,Muvbr\ : “\(? B’i{'- Cass -
”L) ke ding” ¢ “WMU" i

c;l;”-e.s‘ ’p/u()’(,\e, p S C,{‘»\,UL\_M Twlc
QﬁNMm—‘ JBlss o'y o { b Cra Sovworlc 1

1§ Peaglarwnte W %«zﬂs Py deerr wkes/ Lo

& L | e
ﬂ@; ww» b c,a/lﬂ.ujr Boves. 5 madedilis o (—@WL

M&dnv e

7) Cj’/bt(ﬁb& ’O/(ﬂx)pv\_gipe/%ﬂéx{l/#) /19‘1{0—4 /S C—&“D(‘()i/(ﬂ.vu‘w 71;
~&<> e Al e

MJ,Q B! anJ- Qs (n//»\ = b(_
ekl H;(LUJ/’YE S éwn'ltk v P(ﬁa,i:fg( 7
Sy &Qge,«g /Le,a/c il %&4047 [,éq:uw '64'-\.._;_ i

g ée (/Ccm tw, PR

V(., lutu Wﬂ-ﬁ( sl P 0

‘

. (ﬁ\:Qﬂ W(jv WWM\Q (La%_g%d‘\‘:

e,

Note 8
 Use a separate sheet if
necessaty. This information is

"I not needed jf a landowner is

applying to-register the land-as
- agreen under section 1 5(8).

| eharge”, tenant or occupier of any. part of the fand clalmed to be

8. Name and address of every person wham the appllcant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant

a town or village green
’Vm{ymba;a Wellg Bovon

'S

u( J/rom %«JLQ,

1 ¢

Page 16




Note 9

List or enter in the formall such
declarations that accompany’
the application. This can include:
any written-declarations sentio -
the applicant (i.e. a letter); and

* alse any such declarations:
made on the form itself.

9. Voluh"taw registration ~ declaratlons of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the: pmpue‘tor of any relevant
charge over; the land

Note 10

List all supporting .consents,
docurnents and:maps
accompanying:the applzcatlon

Evidence of ownership ofthe .

_Jand must-be- includedfor
JIuntanlyreglsz‘iatlon '

| . applications. There is no: need:
to submit copies of docyments- . |

jssued by the Registration
Authority or-to which it was &
party but they should still be
listed. Use-a separate sheet if
necessary.

10, Supporting documentation

Note 11

. Listany other matters which
shetld be brought to the
attentjon of the Registration

. Authority (in pamoulal ifa

- person interested in the land s
" expected to challenge the.

application for:eglstratmn) Full -

details should:be given:-here-or
onaseparate sheetif
-hecessary.

11 Any other information re[atmg to the appllcatlon
Qr wa Usuﬁf “( N@U& & C tu»ew U-vaxﬂa,o_: eu&«d%mil_’

Q‘N ‘W Lr\:m\qz,) '




~* The application must be signed }
by each-individual applicant, or |. Signature(s) of applicant(s‘):f S Sy

Note 12 | 12. Signature .
by the authorised officer of an o
applicant which is.a body
corporate or unincorporate.

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the 'tru_th:fin‘.p're‘sen’tiﬁg‘jlhg--éppli‘datioh and aceompanying evidence:. |
Ycu may commit a criminal offenge if you deliberately provide miisleading or untrue evidence and if

~ you do so you may be presecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the -application and all
associated documentation. ' -

| Please send your completed application form to:

" The Commons Registration Team _ .

Kent County Council

~ Countryside Access Service
| Invicta House :

| County Hall

| Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998 - S o |
The application arid any representations:made cannot-be treated as confidéntial. To determine the |

application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Atithority to disclose information

received from you to others, which may include other :lboal=_atltl7orities, Government Departments;
public bodies, other organisations-and members of the public. ~

A copy of this form and an y 'aGCcn7panyihg':décuments- riay:be disclosed upon »rieC@f,ip’tiQfé quuesz‘ B
for information under the Envionmental Information Regulations 2004 -and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000. , , S ot

Page 18 -




Full Statement justifying application to-register the land as Town or Village
Greéen -
The original land, much larger than the current site, was bought by the Cranbrook
Rural District Council in late 1950s. In eaily 1960s the RDC erected the current
building on part of the site as its council offices. At this point the RDC still had a
community hall on the site which people hired for children’s birthday parties while,
during weekdays and in‘evenings, community groups were accommodated in the hall
for dress-making classes for keep fit for the elderly, for W1, etc. Some replies: suggest
that even-chuirch services were held in the hall. Tn all this time, in-other-words, for
over fifty years, while these activities took place, the: land was not fenced off and
people were not deterred from walking on the land for recreation, not just to visit the
different buildings, while children played games on the land; like hide and seck, and
learned to ride their bikes on it, as they still do, while adults walked on it and
-exercised their dogs.
In 1974 Cranbrook was incorporated into the bmough of TWells. Then in late 1980s
the Magistrates Court, which was also on the larger site-was demolished, because
TWBC sold off a large portion of the land for executive housing. This housing
development also necessitated demolishing the old RDC hall. A promise was given at
the time (and it i in the TWBC minutes) that a reéplacement comniunity hall would be '
‘built. Tn the meantime, a suite of extra rooms, specifically for the displaced
- commuiity Zroups, were: added to the back of the council offices building, mcludmg
a kitchen and toilets, many of whom had already been mstalled in the RDC hall for
twenty yedrs or-more and therefore using the land.
The original building and the current land (although thisis a mere slice now -ofithe
otiginal putchase) wete paid for by Cranbrook Rural district ratepayers, but the,
- benefits of the sale of the land went into. the coffers of TWBC and the promised:
community hall was NEVER built. Tn 2007 parts of the current building were closed;
 the planning, officers whom people consulted over planning applications were
removed to the Town Hall and planning docs ¢an now only be accessed online, unless.
ohe is- plepaled to trek to: TWells. Most of the user groups. were. givent notice to qun by
June/July 2007, excepttwo groups which stayed on, including CAB, ‘They are-still in
occupation-of a portion of the building and people visit them on:a daily basis. Their
legal oceupation of the buﬂdmg isan anomaly, because they may appeat to hire their
rooms from TWBC but, since they receive a hefty grant from TWBC, which pays
their rent, in effect they pay nothing for their presence on site.and this has been the
case formorethan 20 yeats. They have been givén notice to quit by 8" October 2009
Cabinet in TWells voted last week to demolish the building.
This is a complicated issue because use of the land/site, which originally was several
timeslarger than currently, is still active in the memories of the local people. For
mote thai 20 years the current building satina very much larger site to-which the
whole town had access and their children played on, while adults walked their dogs,
chatted with neighbours, went to use the RDC hall and the Magistrates Court. Then
since the sell off of the larger portion of the land for housing, people have stil]
exercised their dogs and themselves on what is left of the land, attended classes in the.
building, attended open, public meetings. ‘See you at the offices™ is‘a common call for
youngsters as it is a safe, nearby placeto play away form traffic.
The land has become over time the place where marching groups like the scouts/cubs
meet; line up and start their parades, as last year when the brass band involved ii the
commemoration of the Howitzer changed into their uniforins there before marching
-~ up o the War Memorial. :

Page 19



?{P.n_occmﬂ n. )

577250 Gy

Oast

'\ Gorn Hall

he Garden House" |

v
NBROOK

Church of |
‘Sf]Theodb'r; ,

ks_:de,n

rog|

kY

B

L e

N i P

B

it s w A 1 . i T3 aof? i
J | | / R A B T e

> 0009 b

3

kK
L
R

Ty

Page 20




ion

t

ica

rt of the appl

Summary of user evidence submitted

APPENDIX C
in suppo

ash Jo ad

, jussald
jeuoiseaso - 6561 r 'SMNVHS
. siayjo
Aq asn |euo|ses0 Jo slemy [euoiSed0Q sIh gz ¥ 'ao0913
sdnolb Aiunwiwod pue .
uaipliyo Ag pasn s puen sih o¢ a‘'aoooid
‘s19U30 Ag osh Ajlep uess
*/00Z — 0661 @sn Buiping jussaud
1o} uoissiwlad 1ybnog - /161 | d'NVAONOQ
sbupsiyieb ‘Bupped
‘ssweb |jeq '‘Buipleoqaleys jussaid
10} s1eyjo Aq esn uses [euoiseadQ —Ll6) ¥ ‘304
) .Jusseud
JeuoIseadQ — 2961 N 'NNYQ
v 2Inso[0
20140 S0OUIS SIepieodaleys
Ag esn paalesqo 600C — 661 19}
‘6002 payoo] saieb yied 18) - leuoisedoQ | 8861 — 0861 | 'WYHONINNND
USIP|IUD Aq esn usag Alled sihze [ 'SO9VHO
Ajjeuoisesdo ussaid
mou ‘Ajyjuoln —8861 | O '33/LIEGVHO
Buisijeioos ‘Buiuun.
o ‘Bupjiem ‘||eqio0-] sIA Oy d ‘S3TMOD
S8D1L10 0} SIO}ISIA pue . . :
ualpjiyd Ag asn Ajiep usesg ualpliys yum buiheld Apeam sih gy g ‘S31M09D
L00C - ¥861 S9sSBO
10} [IDUNOY wWol} pajusy ApjeSpA | 2002 — 861 I ‘NVYINdYHO
] Ajyjuow mou | i _
1o} Alquisssy Ing Apjespn sihzp | N "YITANVHO
‘siajo Aq @sn juanbal4 T
*600¢Z Ul pajoale saojou . . 0961
sieAud pue pasolo sejes Aessedsu sy-| “Aueseoulg | N 'NYNFINVD
saweb |jeq pue ‘sbujjsswl ‘
Joopino ‘BulpAd ‘Buppdiuoid
‘BuipJeogeleys 10} s1ayjo .
Ag-pasq "se10 JO 8INSO | juesaud g pue
90UIS pUB| U0 S82110N BulpAo — /61 r ‘Mo0oavd
3 jussaid
usIpjiys yum Buikeld . A JeuolsesdQ ~ 7661 £ ‘Qy0d4NY
[ounod uim 8sn
pajeioosse jou asn pajejal yBnoayy asn jo
SUENTTHeTg} |euoijeaI0al [euLIou] | -j1ounon no Aouenbaiy4 | osn jo sajed sweN

Page 21




asn joadA}

A [euoiseaoQ sihA6lL | INYNIHINN -
sapeled
Jo) iod Ajquissse se
pasn os|y “Jeyeh pue Aed.
0} Ualpiiys Ag pssn usyo siA Bl | YV 'NVYNIHTINN
buike|d .
uaip[iyo pue sBop Bunjiem- jsesaud
10} s1oyjo Aq osn useg Jeuolsed0Q - 0861 ACNITINN
‘0Je Bu[oAd ‘Buipieogaieys
10} 88N IS USIPIYD r
‘pajoale s8a0uU pue jussald | “WVISMOMLND
payo0] s81eb ‘g00z woly S|qeUeA —Ll6L = NLLIVYIA
ussald VY pue
Buikeid uaipiiyo Aq pasn uayo Aured — /861 d ‘AT THVIN
Apuaoal . juasaud
J}Un 8}is UO SBJIj0U ON spusii 0} Bumeyn |euo|sesd — 1§61 r'NIIVIN
siseq : E juasaid
Ajiep-e uo slaylo Ag pesn |euoiseddQ — /861 N 'AOTT
BuljoAD ‘ssioiexs ‘bupjjem . jussaid
10} s18y}0 Aq pesn Auejnbey Jeuoisea2Q - /861 r'aroTl
8002 P3X00]
sojeo) '0je sayiq Buipu jussaid
‘Buife|d ualipjiys 88s UsYO —S0.L61 3 MINIT
. sbupno ,
dnoib juesaud a
. Buuiop spusauy Bunesy |Jeuoises00 " —966L | ‘NI “UIdOOH
obe siA -z xoidde pey20] : jussaid
a1eb pue a91j0u 3)jeAlld spualy bunespy |euoIses2Q —866L | NI “NIJdOOH
- esaud
8002 PaX00| S8jeD) [BUOISBOO0 — /61 3 "¥3dO0H
alIs juesald
uo Buikeld usippyo useg Atesm — 50861 d ‘AT DINH
saweb [jeq ‘buiAe|d jussald
‘Bupjiem ‘Bulphn — 6661 3 ‘JILSVH
sapeled 1o} Ajqwasse ’
‘sbop Buisioiaxs ‘Buifeld
ualpiyo :sisyjo Ag ssn ussg siA QL 1 TIVH
66 — /6. L6 — 9861 SOHIAIOE SJuaA® : .
yoinyo Joy Buipiing jo | Ajunwiwios jussaud d
93N 10} PAUIEIQO UOISSIWIBY olgnd TN |EUOISEO00 — 9861 'aiHodo09
[louno) Yylim asn . , :
18430 pajeloosse jou asn pojeoa | Bupped | ybnoay asn Jo
sjuawwon jeuolealoal jeuniojuj | -j1ounon : no asn jo sajeq awieN

asn jo adA]

Kouanbaiy

Page 22



‘sawepb
leq ‘Buioho ‘Buipleogsieys
~ 'yediooy ‘Bunyed N PUEN |
10} Ajiep sieyjo Aq esn useg siA /L | 'AVIHILIHM
sbunesw pue. sgnjo , ‘s19)sbunok } jussaid
Auew 1o} pssn Buiping se Ae|d o} pue| pasn —2/6L | IN‘Y3LSEIM
: “s19yjo Aq pasn- : o
AeinBay "Ausdoid ayeaud jussaud
Bune;s gooz ul peisod subig — /961 M NIHHVYMWN
‘sisyio Aq Ajiep ,
pasn 8)s "800z Ul pasojo jusesaid
SSOIL0 JBYE Pajoale 910N ) Apeam — /961 YV NIHHYM
. : Alquissse jo a2ejd ‘bop juasaud ]
sIA Z 1| Jano payoo] sejen) . Mjem ‘spusily Buizeai [BUOISEDD(Q - 6961 H ‘NOLIVA
Buike|d uaipjiyo pue bupjed . .
‘ssa00e 10} sI1ayjo Aq pesn siA 0z o HSIVMW
. . jussaud
[euoisesdQ — €161 N ‘NNVMS
~Apiesp sihoe | A 'SHIWWNS
g|doad jussaud
[200] Aq pasn Ajenbay a|doad Bunsspyy [EUCISED0Q —//61 | d‘SYINNNS
SJUaAs Aunwos ‘Buiked juesaid
uaIpjiyo :si8yjo Agq osn uses- |euoisean) — 8961 S'LLNY1S
, . 800¢ — 9861 r 'AZINVLS
o 00T — 961 3 'NVAY
spuaysam pue sbuiuans yussaid ] /\ pue
1B paxoo] Ajjusdsi 8jen Agyuopy —796) | V 'SUIONATIY.
sapeied-
Joy juiod juasaid
Algwassy Ao — G961 S '1Od1IHd
sapeled . . :
1o} Bujjquiesse sdnob juesaid
‘uaIp|iyo Ag osn ussg Ao —- 6961 V 'SLLYvd
1 PSSOJ0 |1IoUN0D 8y} USyYM _ S o :
Buippng uo paieadde 830N sspeled , SRR Ajyuopy sihge | d AMINANN
[IoUnon YIm asn -
: °y10 pajeIoosse Jou asn pajejaa | Bupjied | ybnoay asn jo .
‘sjuswiwion Jeuonealoal [euLioju] | -[1ounoy o Aouenbaiy4 | asn jo sajeq suieN

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land at Sherwood Lake
in Tunbridge Wells as a new Town Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council's
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 26" October 2010.

Recommendation I recommend that the County Council informs the applicant
that the application to register the land at Sherwood Lake, Tunbridge Wells has
been accepted, and. that the land subject to the application be formally
registered as a Town Green.

Local Member: Mr. K. Lynes | Unrestricted item

‘Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Sherwood
Lake in Tunbridge Wells as a new Town. Green from local resident Mr. J. Chappell
on behalf of The Friends of Sherwood Lake (“the Applicant’). The application,
‘dated 7™ April 2009, was allocated the application number VGA612. A plan of the
‘site is shown at Appendix A to this report and a copy of the application form is.

- attached at Appendix B

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Cdmmons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons

Registration Authority to register land as a anlage Green where it can be shown
that:
‘a significant number of the lnhabltants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until- at least the date of
application (sectlon 15(2) of the Act); o
- Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (sectlon
15(3) of the Act); or
- Use of the land “as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act). :

- 5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the Applicant must notify the

landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the apphca’uon in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’'s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the

Page 25



County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provxde local people
with the opportumty to comment on the application. The publicity must state a
period of at least six weeks during which objections and represehtatlons can be
made.

The application site

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of a
large area of woodland of approximately 19.2 hectares (47 acres) in size situated
to the east of Greggs Wood Road in the Sherwood area of Tunbridge Wells. The
application site also includes a large lake.

The case -

7.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the
local inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right' for more than 20
years. R :

Included in the application were 58 user evidence questionnaires from local’
residents asserting that the application site has been available for free and
uninhibited use for lawful sports and pastimes over the last twenty years and -
beyond. A summary of the evidence in support of the apphcatlon is attached at
Appendix C.

Also received in support of the application were photographs showing the Iake
and fish that had been caught from it. The application also included minutes of
meetings of the Friends of Sherwood Lake Committee regarding public access to
the lake.

Consultations

10.Consultations have been carried out as requilred and the following comments

11

have been received.

.Tunbrldge Wells Borough Councn wrote to confirm that it had no objectlon to the

application. Its response included a report from the Planning Service ‘setting out
internal consultations with various Borough Council Officers. In it, a quote from
the Landscape and Biodiversity Officer states “| have worked at Tunbridge VVells
Borough Council since 2000 and this site and the surround land were one of the
first places | had to visit in my professional capacity as Landscape Officer. At that

time access, as now, was free and unrestricted with w:despread lnformal use of

the woodlands and especially Sherwood Lake”.

12.Local resident Mr. R. Cobb who, along with his wife, has lived adjacent to the site

for the last 27 years, wrote in support of the application. He said:
“we can attest to the fact that throughout that time the entire woodland area
(Gregg’s Wood, Robin Gate Wood and Coneyburrow Wood) has been
‘criss-crossed by footpaths continually used by the public — dog walkers,
family strollers, walkers and bird and animal watchers. The great ‘hurricane’
of 1987 caused some of the paths to be blocked by fallen trees but
" alternative routes were quickly established around these obstacles. As

Page 26'



regular walkers ourselves, we have at no “time expenenced any of the
successive owners of the woods attempting to preclude the public from
using these paths .

Landowner

13.The appllcatlon site is owned by Gleeson Strateglc Land Ltd and registered with
the HM Land Registry under title number K768980. The site was acquired by the -
current landowner in 1997 from the Secretary of State for Health. A letter of
~ objection has been received from Wragge and Co solncntors who act on behalf of
Gleeson Strategic Land Ltd (“the objector”). .

14.The objection is made on the followmg grounds:

e The evidence submitted relates almost exclusively to the lake since most of
the recreational activities referred to are either fishing related or involve:
walking around the lake;

o In 1994, the previous landowner entered into an agreement with the Sherwood
Park Angling Club which permitted members of the club to have sole fishing
rights and access to the lake; and

o In 2008, a fence was erected along the boundary with Greggs Wood Road.
Evidence suggests that this replaced an earlier fence. The original fence had a
gate, but the current landowner removed that gate in 2008 and closed the gap
with fencing.

Legal tests.

15.1n dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County .

Council must consider the following criteria: '

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful spoﬂs and

- pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a part/cular

- locality, or a nelghbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or meets one of the crlterla set out in sections
15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

16.The -definition of the phrase as of right' has been considered by the House of

~ Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is considered that if a

person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or

permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop him

or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acqunred and
further use becomes ‘as of right'.

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, 'Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 27



17.In this case, there is no evidence to suggest that the use of the land by local

residents has been with secrecy, but within the documentation supplied by the
parties, reference has been made to the existence of a permlsswe ‘agreement, of
fencing and the possible existence of notlces

Permlsswe agreement

18.The objector contends that the existence of a permissive agreement between the

previous landowner and the Sherwood Park Angling Club (“the Club”) renders any
access to the shores of the land and the use of the land for fishing purposes as
being with permission.

19 A copy of the permissive agreement is attached at Appendix D. It will be noted

that the permissive agreement provides for members of the Club, their families
and friends to have access to the lake for the purpose of fishing. The agreement
therefore provides for a specific section of the community to use the lake for a
specific purpose-with the consent of the landowner. It does not confer a general
right of recreation to all of the residents of the community. The .agreement is
therefore only effective in disproving use ‘as of right’ for the purposes of fishing for
known members of the Club, their families and friends. Without knowledge of the
Club’s membership, it is impossible to-conclude that the use of the land by those
who have provided evidence of use in support of the Village Green application
was not ‘as of right".

20.There is evidence of permission having been sought to use the applicaﬁon‘site by

21

two witnesses. One states that he was granted permission to fish the lake by the
then Estate Manager in 19402, but this is well outside of the relevant twenty-year
period for the purposes -of this application and only applied to fishing. Another
witness refers to permlssmn being sought for the use of the application site from
the current landowner?, but there is no information from either the witness or the

objector as to the nature of the permission sought so it is not possible to reach-a

conclusion on whether the latter witness's use has been ‘as of right’.

Notice and locked qaté

.The permissive égreement refers, at paragraphs 1(d) and 1(e), to an undertaking

by the then landowner (the Health Authority) to provide a lock to the gate in the
boundary fencing and to erect a notice board near the gate stating that entry is
permltted only to authorised persons.

22.There is no evidence that the gate was ever locked. Reference is made by one

witness to the existence of a notice: “Sherwood Angling Club (now defunct) had
notices on the gate (largely ignored)”*. However, there is no indication as to the
actual wording of the notice, or any information regarding the date upon which
they were erected and duration of their existence. None of the other witnesses
recall seeing any notices on the application site.

2 See user evidence questionnaire of Mr. A. Eade
3 See user evidence questionnaire of Mr. A. Edwards
* See user evidence questionnaire of Mr. M. Eade

Page 28



Fencing

23.1t is common ground between the parties that fencing has been in existence along

the boundary of the site with Greggs Wood Road. The applicant explains that part

of the current fence was first installed in 2007 by the Town and Country Housing

Group: These works were undertaken to prevent motorbikes from accessing the

* application site, but the existence of a kissing gate in the fencing meant that it did
not prevent pedestrian access to the site.

24.In 2008, the objector replaced the fencing and the gate was removed. The
objector is of the view that.any access to the site following this date would have
been with force (and therefore not ‘as of right) since the fencing was broken down
to gain access. The applicant states that even if use ‘as of right’ ceased in 2008,
the two-year grace period provided by section 15(3) of the Commons Act 2006
means that the erection of the fencing is not fatal to the application.

Conclusion on ‘as of right’

25.There is nothing contained within the user evidence to suggest that there have
been any substantive challenges to use prior to the erection of the fencing in
2008. Whilst the permissive agreement refers to consent being granted to
members of the Sherwood Park Angling Club for the use of the lake, there is no
evidence that any of the witnesses who have submitted evidence were members
of that Club and thus whose use would have been by virtue of that permission.
The agreement does make reference to the erection of a notice and the locking of
the gate but, once again, there is no evidence to suggest that this requirement
was actually complied with. : ‘

26.1n the absence of any evidence to suggest that the use of the land was by virtue
of a permission, or that it was challenged in any way prior to the erection of the
fencing in 2008, it can be concluded that the use of the land by the local residents
has been ‘as of right'. ' ' ‘

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports énd '
pastimes?

27.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,

children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that

~ both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful

sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities®.

28.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
- ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’®.

S R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999].3 All ER 385
® R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 29



29.1n this case, the ev'id.ence demonstrates that the land has been used for a number
of recreational activities. The summary of evidence of use by local residents at
Appendix C shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken place.

30. Criticism is made by the objector that the evidence submitted in support of the
application is focused largely around the lake and, in particular, fishing. There can
be little doubt that fishing is a lawful sport and pastime for the purposes of Village
Green registration. The question of whether fishing was undertaken on a
permissive basis has already been dealt with above and, having concluded that it
‘was not by virtue of any permission, it is not possible to disregard the evidence of
use in respect of fishing”. ,

31.Contrary to the assertions of the objector, there is plenty of evidence of use of the
application site for other recreational pursuits. In particular, there is significant
evidence of the use of the land for dog walking (both with and without dogs).
Whilst the lake clearly provides a focal point and picturesque feature of the
application site, use of the application site does not .appear to have been -
concentrated solely around the lake itself.

- 32.This is demonstrated by the evidence of Mr. Cobb, - who wrote in support of the

~ -application (see paragraph 12). Mr Cobb describes the entire woodland area as
being ‘criss-crossed by footpaths continually used by the public’. Other witnesses
provided comments such as: ‘there are lots of paths through the woods used for
dog walking'®, ‘paths cross woodland all the way'®, and ‘there are paths around
the lake and tracks into the woodland'"°. ‘

- 33.The very nature of woodland means that certain areas of the application site may,
from time to time or even on a permanent basis, have been’ inaccessible due to
undergrowth. In this respect, it should be noted that the legislation does not
require applicants to be able to demonstrate use of every part of the application
site. The Courts have held that “a registration authority would not expect to see
evidence of use of every square foot of a site, but they would have to be
persuaded that, for all practical purposes, it could sensibly be said that the whole
of the site had been so used for 20 years™"". '

34.1t can thefefore be concluded that there has been use of the efpplication site as a
whole for the purposes of lawful sports and pastimes.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

35.The right to use a Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality or of a
neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to define
this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified.

7 With the exception, perhaps, of the evidence of Mr. A. Edwards as noted at paragraph 20

® See user evidence questionnaire of Mr. F. Edwards

® See user evidence questionnaire of F. W. Harwood

1% 5ee user-evidence questionnaire of Mr.J. Tomsett

"' R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 89

Page 30



“locality” and “neighbourhood”

36.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been
the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders' case, it was considered that *...at the very
least, Parliament required the users of the land to be the /nhabltants of
somewhere that could sensibly be described as, a locality... there has to be, in my
judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge
later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality should normally
constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the county’.

37.0n the subject of neighbourhood, the Courts have held that ‘it is common ground
that a neighbourhood need not be a recognised administrative unit. A housing
estate might well be described in ordinary language as a neighbourhood... The
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged to be .a
nelghbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohes:veness otherwise the word
erghbourhood” Would be stripped of any real meaning' "

38:Although it is accepted that, in all probablllty, only those living closest to a piece of

land are Ilkely to use it for recreational purposes, there is still a requirement for

the purposes of Village Green registration to show that the land has been used by

. the residents of a defined area or, as suggested by LJ Pill in a case known as

Steed™, ‘something more than a place or geographical area — rather a distinct

and identifiable community such as might lay reasonable claim to a town or
village green’.

39.The Applicant specifies the locality by reference to a plan showing the Tunbridge
Wells Borough Council electoral ward of Sherwood. The plan at Appendix D.
shows the area within which users reside in relation to the specified locality. An
electoral ward is a Iegallg/ recognlsed administrative unit for the purposes of
anlage Green registration’

40.Geographically speaking, the electoral ward covers a large area, although a .
significant proportion of the land area is occupied for non-residential purposes
(i.e. a large industrial estate and further woodland). For this reason, it is useful to
consider whether there is an identifiable neighbourhood W|th|n the relevant
locality.

41.1t is considered that the Sherwood Estate forms a distinct and identifiable
community within the locality. It consists of broadly similar housing stock (in terms
of age and architecturey and is served by functions that are specific to the
community, such as a Primary School and a community centre. Therefore, the
Sherwood Estate would qualify as a neighbourhood within the wider locality of the
electoral ward for the purposes of Village Green registration.

‘2 R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90
'* R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 92
" * R v Suffolk County Counci, ex parte Steed and another (1995)

® Leeds Group plc v Leeds City Council [2010] EWHC 810 (Ch)

Page 31



“a significant number”’

42.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:

: ‘a nefghbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a ne/ghbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using. the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that
the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’'®. Thus, what is a ‘significant-
number will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case
dependmg upon the location of the application site.

43.1n thls case, there appears to have been regular use of the land by a large
number of local residents from the Sherwood Estate and this is evidenced by the
large number of user evidence forms submitted in support of the application. The
application is supported by 58 user evidence questionnaires from persons living in -
the locality, demonstrating use of the application site over a considerable period.
It is considered that the volume of use would have been sufficient to indicate that
the Iand in questlon was in general use by the local community.

(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is contmumg up untll the date of
appllcatlon or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

44 The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of
the application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above).

45.As stated above, use of the application site ‘as of right’ ceased with the erection
of the fencing in 2008. The application was made in April 2009 (i.e. after the use
‘as of right’ had ceased).

46.Section 15(3) of the Commons Act 2006 provides that an application can be
made once use ‘as of right’ has ceased, so long as it is made no more than two
years from the date upon which use ‘as of right' ceased. In this case, since the
application was made within the specified two year perlod this requirement has
been met.

(e) Whether uée has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

47.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has

been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use as of right ceased in

- 2009 and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period ( ‘the material period”) is 1989
1o 20009. '

48.The user evidence summarised at Appendix C demonstrates that there has been
use of the application site as far back as the 1940s. In particular, there is
significant evidence of use during the 1990s and 2000s. Therefore, it can be

'® R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Litd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71 »

Page 32



concluded that there has been use of the application site for a full period of twenty
years.

Conclusion

49.From close consideration of the evidence submitted, | have concluded that the
legal tests concerning the registration of the land as a Town Green (as set out
above) have been met.

'Recommendation

50.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to

register the land at Sherwood Lake, Tunbridge Wells has been accepted, and that
the land subject to the appllcatlon be formally registered as a Town Green

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda. dawes@kent gov uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — TeI: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request'at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A - Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C - Table summarising user evidence

APPENDIX D — Copy of permissive agreement

- APPENDIX E — Plan showing the area within which users reside

Page 33




560000

APPENDIX A:
Plan showing application site

141 000,000050

141000270

140750200000

140750.000000

140500000020

1 40500,000000

Trmnage e
o an el

560000 0uneee

560250 """

560500

S

le 1:4000

Land subject to Town Green application
at Sherwood Lake and surrounding

woodland in Tunbridge Wells

20

Page 34




FORN CA9

| APPENDIX B:

Copy.of the application form

Commons Act 2006: Sectloh 15

-Appllcatlon for the reglstratlon of laml
' as a new Town or Village Green

‘This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority

indicating date of receipt: Applicalldn-‘nilmbe.r;
— NOAGIL.
- COMMONS Al’"l 2005. e
- KENT GOUNTY OU‘\lLlL
l'll:(zl 8T Rm lDN AU'l HOFHTY
7 APR 2000 VG number allocated at reglstratlon

v N'oté 1o é‘pplicants

Appllcants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changesto'the commons leglsters)
Gundance to applicants in the pilot implementation areds” and to-fote the: followmg

6

Al apphcants ‘should complete parls 1=6.and 104152.‘

parts 7 and 8. Any person can-apply-to register land as a-
section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

There is no fee for applications undervsechon 15,

_Apphcanls applymg for registration under sectlon 16(1). of the 2006 Act:should, in 4

‘Applicants applying for veluntary. reglslrallon under’ section15(8) should, in addltlon complete part .
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under- secllon 15(8),

ot dition, ‘complete |
green where the cntena;for leglstranon in:

Note1
Insert name-of Comimons
. Registration Authority

To the' &'( gt Covnandl:

Connreisl 8 52
ERTVA T4 MR B oA
FABN-ETorE.

Kenm Mey

1. Commons Regl.é-_t;ratlérn Authority

Neeses

ek

SE-Y\AJ \LC

Coondest WALL

Page 35




Note2

If there is:more:than one
applicant, list all nanies, Use &
separate.sheet if necessary.
State the full title of the
organisation ifthe. appllcant isa
body.corporate.or

unincorporate. If you supply an

. email address in the box
provided, you may receive
~communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
hersons (e.g. objectors) via
email. If part 3 is not completed
-all-correspondence:and notices
will-be sent to the first.named
applicant,.

{N'arfne:

‘Telephone number:.
{incl. national dialling code)

| 2, Name and address of the applicant

¥ oewss of - Sheiweds Lawee:
Full postal address: / e QoS Qoo
(incl.'Postcode) A

TUBITES LIES

Wen™ | Thed uTT

G\2AL SR

‘Fax-number: , '
(incl. national dialling code) .22~ £ 14042

E-mail address: FRSL @ BTusTELNET . (ot

Note 3

is instructed for-the puiposeés of
the:application. If so all
correspondence and notices will
be sent to'the person-orfirm

-~ nahied here.If you supply an
email-address in the hox
provided, you may receive
communications from the

Registration Authorily orother 1

persons {e.g. ab/ectors) via

This part should be completed.if Q Q’Nameﬁand address of representative, if any

a representative, e.g..asolicitor, | ..~ .
’ Name:

Firm:

Full postal address:
» (intl. Postcade)

- email.
Telephone number:
(incl: vnétipnal”dialling, code)
.Fax number;
f(xncl national dralling code)
E—mail"address;'
"Note d 4. Basis of application for registration and q,uanfying*;c,riiteni-a .

Forfurther datatls of the
requirements.of an.application
refer lo Schedule 4, parag/aph

9 to.the Commons:Registration

" (England)Regulations 2008.

: If you‘are the landownerand:are segkirig voluntarily to register your
land: please tick this box and: move fo questlon 5. Application’ made
| under section 15(8) _— B 0

If the apphcauon is made undersection 15(1) of the. Act please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particulat subsechon and

| qualifying cntenon applles to the case.

' :S,;ec,tlon 15(2) applies: ” : @/
| Section 15(3) applies: : | O

“Section 15(4) applies: -

Page 36




*Sectioii 15(6) enables any

4 perlod of statutory closure

‘where aceess to.the land.is
denied to.be disregarded in:
determining-the 20 year: period.

If section 15(3)-ar (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use 'as of right"-ended and why:

N\ 8

| If section 15(6)* is bemg rehed upon in detelmmmg the: penod of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure:(if: any) ‘Which needs to
'bedisregarded:

Th/s pan‘ is to-identify:the.new::

within-an accurately identified:
boundary. State the Land

1 Registry title:number where

| Name by-which usually.:kn,awn:

5, Descnptlon and;particulars of the area. of land m respect of

| green. The agcompanying map j"which apphcatuon ;;_or_-reglstratlon is made

. ‘mustbe ata'scale ofatleast
© 1:2,600 and shows the. land by:
. means of distinctive colouring.

Snenwoas  Lawe

It may:he possible.to indicate .

- the Iocallty of the green by

reférence to.an. admmtstrattve
area, Such.as.a paristy or '

‘ electoral ward, orother e area
: sumo/ently defined.by name -

(such as a village). If this isnot

possible-a map should be-

provided on which alocality or

. neighbourhood is marked:

clearly-at-a scale of 1:10;000.

v Whlch the: apphcatlon is made -

| Indicate the: locality (or neighbourhoad: Wlthm the Iocah
-claimed green relates. by writing the sinistrati
,.fge(Jgraphlcal area by name below. and/or by attachlng ama

knOWI? | Locaﬁon: GI/‘LEGC~$ wc,&b 5 A TQ\SQV\,\’DC& \,J(U-—-S ‘
TR |
Common Land: regxster unit. number (only if the land is: aheady
;;reg|stered Common Land)
j-P!ease tick the box to conﬂrm that: you ‘have attached amap: of the :
Jand (ata scale of at least 1:2, 500) B
Note 6 6. Locahty or nelghbourhood wlthm a |ocahty in respect of

y) to which the |
which the: area is clearly marked:

WAMPS & wveloded

Please tick heri if a'map is attactied (at & scals 6f 110,000 &

Page 37




Note 7

App/loants should, prowcle a
suminaryof the casé for.
registration here.and-enclose:a:
separate full statement and-all
other evidence including- any’

- ‘witness statements in support o -

the application.

‘. This: mforma!lo "/s not needed if

alandowneris applying to
register:the land-as a green
under:section 15(8);

7. Justlflcatlon for apphcatlon to reglster the land as a Town or

iVlllage Green '

(el ﬁ“?“cwb‘—‘§' CEMNCULTON - EVTNE S AGECHaALILS

.(?,m\;'z.s; et TeEAT W Aeeny  fets SsElie \S LaFoL,

CSfenTts € PASTHAES s TS LA GEDERTD HATS, B AdU Sy

EMEAeoS | WAE  For oYBIR 2oNEsmay

S_'-:.f’anrv s bane \J\p\\ WO SN A3 BV LAY g \"A FEAAE S
VS LUmHE BOCtn BN v :DC‘G LoBLENG | EHe BTN cTpal Q@ i

Lats Westertont- e

CTRSAETOLE; T VS O, USRS YON TS CAE LR,

CQROaEWS  For. UURACE Gheest SeRtoy ASh OnE STl |

s e BiaiEsed e ik Phesenve —as oy |
: L "1*’\—\._.1 Laye € For e Oo i oy

1 (' LeAst Weore, Mens eirhadadE ueNTiona e e €&

QQQT%.&QQB W ORESHEN e Tae Furuad

_necassa/y This information-is

Note 8.
Use:a separate sheet if

not hieeded if a-landowneris

" applying to register the‘land-as

a green under section 15(8).

“ | ‘8. Name and address of. every person whom the agi' |

believes to be an owner, lessee,; propnetor of any. “relevant

: .charge” tenant or occupier of any patt of the- land claimed to be
|:a town ot village green

RGeS G imeshons
Henseos Wengh &

MoVt Ca i
Sorvrone | Suanes
Sm3 aes

Page 38




Note 9

List-or.enter in the foiin-all such
declarations that-accompany

" the application. This can include
any wrilten declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a letler), and
also-anysuch declarations
macdle on the form itself.

9. Voluntary reglstratlon declarat;ons of consent from-any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the_propneton of anyrelevant

| charge over, the. land

ST e

 Note10

. List all supporting consents;.
documents-and.maps
accompanying the: application:
Evidence of owriership of the
land nust be-included for
volunfarily regzstrahon
applications. There i$:no need
to submit copies of doctiments
isstied by the Registration

. Authority or to:which it wasa

- parly bit:they should still be
listed: Use a separate sheet if
hecessary.

10, Supporting documentation

bhaceans  Nesseowsiody s Mowe: W

Note 11

List any other malters. which.
should be brought to the
attention of the Registration
Authority (in pamoular ifa
person interested inithe land is
expected to challenge the

" .application for registration). Ful/ :

détails should be given here ér
‘on ‘a separale sheet if
necessary.

i 11. Any other mfermatlon relatmg to the appllcatlon

YET ndord v

Page 39




_hyithe authoriséd officer of an

Note 12 12 Slgnature
The.application must be signed
by each individual applicant, or.

S;gnature(s) of apphoant(s)
applicant which.is.a body TS CalnPiEu- Qt\c\\(\vxrncd OF = (SN &- L~

corporate or unincorporate.

| Dater e Wow et

REMINDER TO APPLICANT.

You are responsible for telling the truth m presenting the application-and accompanymg ‘evidence,
You may commit a criminal offence if you-deliberately: prowde misleading or untrue evidence and if
you da so you may be prosecuted. You are adwsed to keep a copy of the appllcatlon and-all |
assomated documentation. ‘

Ple'ase.send your completedvabp'l‘icati‘on form to:

The Commons Regxstratlon Team
Kent County Council -
Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

Gounty Hall

Maidstone

| Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998 B
The application and any represenfat/ons made cannot be treated as conﬂde’j tial. To- determ/ne the. .
application it-will be necessary for the Commons Registration Author/ty to disclose information |
received from you to others, which may mclude other Iacal~,authorltles Govemment Depan‘ments S

- public.bodies, othel organisations and: members of the public. -

A copy of this form and.any accompanying documents may:be. disclosed upon. recelpt ofa request:

_for -information under the Environmental Information Regu/at;ons 2004 and -the Freedom of |

Information Act 2000.

Page 40




ORDNANGE SURVEY
PLAN.REFERENGE

TQ 6040 TQ 6041

- Seale 12500,

county KENT

DISTRICT TUNBRIDGE WELLS

1©Crown C;:pyrigl'n:

.

N

LBy
‘Gregg'y Woad.
49 g4
a .

‘qh

‘. c;i'neyl;uifpv{ Wood

i,

Gregp't:Wo

TR
i

H530 A

gt
%.D,i‘ .

"

2, e

’.:"':lm:vmm-él ot

8 Cenbuitod Wesd 9=
A 3 s

&w.qn ¥

oz

AT
o

glt Q8

e o

S0 TBET Gaw
aR: §

a9 WP vy

od.,
5.
Y

T ke

e el
1 [
;




ion

t

Ica

rt of the appl

Summary of user evidence submitted

APPENDIX C

in suppo

S8oUBIUL JUalayip : [5)
Auew ybBnouayi, Buisijelsoo ‘sojuoid ‘Bupjjem Bog FAREETY jussald — 861 ‘SAYVYAMAZ
‘saojjou :
ou jng (usdo j|le Ajsnoiraid) mou si1sy) .
Buious} swos si alay] -Bupjjem Bop 1o} Bupjjem E|
pasn spoom ay} ybnouys syjed jo s30T Bop *pjiyo e se spoom u; BuiAeld wesald—G6o6lL | ‘SAMVYMAZ
40 81eb paxo0|q yaIym 9S0|D poom|iS
800z Ul dn jnd sem 80Us 'SUOSIBD) Aq 10 spisaye] v |
woJy} esn 1o} uoissiwiad Jybnog Aq 210 BIA Buiyoyem plig jussalid — Go6| ‘sadvmal
(paioubi Ajgbue)) sjeb uo :
sao0u pey (Jounyep mou) gn|o bulbuy Jesh
poomiays ‘ysi 0} uoissiwiad pey peq Jad syeem ¥ 8002 — 0/61 W '3av3
puiddip puod ‘Buijooys ‘Bupioid nuiseyo
‘Buiysy ‘Builsgyoeq mc_vl_o:_ ‘pue] 8y} jussaid
uo ped Bupje] seniAloe Auelwt Uses seH Apusnbal —SOp6l g 'aava
a)e| ysu 0} 0¥6]. Ul Jobeuepy peoy . :
ajejsg woly uoissiwiad pajuels) | poopp sBBaio elp | Buiyolem plig ‘spoom ui Buijiep Apfoam aoim | 2007 — OV61 VY ‘aava
(a18p OU) padusj Ajjeiled a)g s1eb ybnoiy] puisyjeioos Aptospn jussald — L00¢ a 'moa
1 sousy ybnouy, Buisieioos Alleg uesaid - /661 1 'INVHO
purysy 1o} Ajiwel Aq pasn Buiiepn Ajyuoy jussaid — €002 d ‘A3100
! aypim .
2007 Jawwins u| v&om._m Buipus4 | ,90us} oy} ybnouy, Buipesy ‘Buisijeroos ‘Bupiiepn . FASEETY wesald—066L | g ‘NOLAITD
| sayjiglojow SPOOM _ .
dojs o} dn jusm Buiousy ‘g0z JSWWNS Uf | . O} 80UBNUS, BIA Buisiieioog Aplespn juasald — 6661 O ‘Qy¥VvHD
- Buiysiem paig ‘buisijeloos N
a1eb eip ‘Bupjjem Bop ‘Bupiiepn FEEIN esaid - 1002 | "113ddVHO
buiyolem . r
ajeb ybnody L paig ‘Buisijeroos ‘Bupjjem Bog Aeg ussasd — 1002 | "113ddVYHO
_ . Rep 0
Buniiep. Jayjo Aisng | yuesaid — 1002 | "T13ddVHO
a1eb ybnoliy | BulyoIem paig ‘Bujepn Aleinbay 800¢C — 1961 3 ‘HSNg
sajumolg . ‘ :
eeben sdiliyd 1S YIm syjem ainen Aeakoom) | juesald — |86L | AV ‘NAMOXH
Aemeaieb ybnoayy . asije100s pue sbop e Apieam aoim | Jussaid — 6661 IV ‘"NAONG
o1eb ybnouy Bupjlem bog Ajuo Jswwing G861 — 0961 r'3a1avag
, peoy ‘
alis cczmo__nam‘H 3y} Uo sylem poopp sbBalio SpJIg pue ajiplim ,
JUSIalIp BUIU SJoM BI18Uj} Swll} 8UO 1Y puiysqg sjes anJesqo ‘Aejd 03 usIpjiyd 300, sAep SO 0661 — G961 r'sSAvd
Aemaleb eip ~bunjlepn Ajjeuoiseod | ussald — 0002 d ‘NIaHvea
peoy : . -
poopp sbbsigy Bulysi 10} osm - . v
uo 21eb eip Jad xg ‘Jooyos 0} yjem o} Ajeq Ajrep ussald — Z00zZ 7 'HIMvE
SUENTIEY) $S999Y . osn jo asn Jo pouad aueN
asn Jo adA}L AKousnbaig

Page 42




peoy
poopp sbBalg jo
yibus| sy} Buieoss

aylplim Inoge pjyo Buneonps

Page 43

S9OUBIIUS [RIBASS, ‘Bunjjem Bop ‘Buisijeloos Ajep soim] | uesaid — /661 o dINEY
- Aemajeb ybnoiuy, Buisijeloos pue bunjiepn APISSAA wesald — 200z S AT
(e1ep ou) pejosie bupua4 Apjsam som ] | uesald - G600z | 4 'Nvador
. . o Jswiwins T 'NILYVYIN
_Bupjoid Japi Buunp Ajleq | uesaid — 2661 “43INNIr
- Z
800¢ Anp ul pajoals Buous4 8ous} ybnouyy, Buisijeroos ‘Bupjiem Bog N Areq wesald ~G/61 | ‘QHVYVONVYE
. i SHINEETR . A4
Bougj ybnodyy, | Buposjod ‘Bupijem Bop ‘Bupiiepn Apesp juesesd - 6661 | ‘QUVYVONYT
: ,80Uu8} ybnodyy, Puisieloog - Aesm Jussaud — /661 Y 'SITONI
8002 Ul peOy POop) sbbalo Jo pajoais .
-~ Puious eoe|d Bupjey sojuold pue
Buidwes usss se} ‘spoom au} ybnoiyy - lswuwins 9 'N
' pue ayg| au} punoJe syjed ale aisy] Buixejai pue BupieAn "N ul Ajre@ jussaid - 9961 | OSNIHOLNH
) ] . N’
Bupjlem Bog Areg jussaid — 9861 | AOOMINTOH
: Buipu aIq - : juasaid
saoueius ybnouyy, ‘spusil} Buiess ‘Bupjjem o Apespa =000Z2 | 1 'SNID9IH
EERIENE) ) o .
Auew ybneuyy, Buisijeroog Apjespn wesald — 8661 | M ‘SNIDOIH
‘ pouad [eusjew puiuen
Bunp jou — Ajuo ppyo e se pasny’ suods pue uoiesioal [BI1suan) 6v61 —2Z¥61L | ¥ ‘AFISWIH
ajijplim buiniesqo ‘Bupiiepn 8002—/00Z | . Vv 'QvaH
puiyoyem paiq ‘Buppoid Ausgan|q :
‘(0661 — 9.61) UBIPJIYD YIM d
Aem sy} ||B pUB|POOM SSO10 syled Buiysy ‘Bupjiem 1oj 8sn MON Apyblupgoy | esaid —9/6L | ‘QOOMYVYH
sebeleb - :
puiyaq yyed eIp Bupjiem ‘ssjolexa ‘uoljexelsy Aptesp 200Z— /661 | V ‘AIAYVH
peoy ] Jauwuwins 7
800 Ul pejoass soued | poop sBbaio ein uopexe|al ‘Bupjlep | ut Apiespn wesald —9/6) | 'ITHANVYID
, JERIEN . .
200¢ JoWlINS Ul pa}oais aous ul sjoy ybnoayy, Bupjlem Bog Apea wesald - $00Z | M “TTINNED
. . bujyoiem .

piiq ‘espoiexe ‘Bupjiem Bog N Apieem aoim L 900¢ — 8861 ERSIREE

Asbins s,0j00p spaiq Buipasy “Apnjs ainjeu FEELNC
1 yied eip ‘uapjiyo pue Hop yum Bupjiepn N sel |eloneS | 900Z — 8861 r'sim3
r
sle|l JO Jeal BiA Bupiiem Bog 8002 — /002 | ‘39ai€aid
sjey JO Jeal BIA sbop Bupjlep N EEE 800z — 2002 | | 'I9oaiya1g

sjuawon $S920Y buiysid asn jJo - asn Jo pouad SlieN
: asn jo adA} Aouanbeaig .




Buiddip puod Joj ssjumolg s, dijiud

aueT
1sinyoe|g 1o peoy
poopp sbfain

}S yum pasn “(syep ou) pajoais Burous woJj ssaddy - Bupiiem N Alenuuy ssaid —z661 | M 'SWVITIIM
Asebins s ojoop :
, ‘ 10 1esl 10 peoy :
(e1ep ou) 81eh ' Usaq Ajsnoinaid poopA sbbalo sinujseyo Jawwins :
pey siey) aloym pa1oslis aous- ‘Remussio) BIA Bupoid ‘Burjem ‘esioiexy ul Ajuiuop 200Z — 1861 | 4 'SWVITIIM
, o 9ous} Ui deb :
(s1ep ou) eyl | mou uesaid usym : d '3av3
punole pajoase sajeb pue Bupus) [eiped a1eb uybnoiyy Bupiepn Ajusnbalg | ussaid — 8961 —~NOLTYM
A . ‘pue|poom
By} OJul SHoB} pue a)e| sy} punoie peoy :
syjed aie alay ] ‘(s1ep OU) S}l POOAA poopn sbbsig Jswwins wesald ~ 8661 (D
sbbalc) Aq pejoais useq sey @dus4 | uo ayeb ybnoly) Bupioid Jnuisayo ‘Bupjepn N ul Ajuiein ‘2861 —6G/J61 | ©'LIASNOL
Aiebins s,10100p Aq sseooe peoy . , , :
pauief os sieaA g 1se| Ui peoy POOAA poopp sbBbain Buiddip puod ‘Bupoid Jnujseys - ssaid —- 8661 (sIN).
sBBais) je 81eb ou yym pajoale aoua4 | yo s3eb ybnolyl ‘Bop pue usIpjiys yim Bunjiepn Ayuopy ‘2861 —1/61 | ©'1LIASINOL
(e1ep oU) ps1osIs Bous wesald - 900z | M ‘NYNMIILL
ARemaieb eip Bupjoid nuysayd Joj e, juesald — //61 Vv ‘HLINS
800z Ul paoale 8oua | 8s0j) POOM|IS BIA Apjeem som | 6002 —¥261 | | "YNOINAZS
Aemaieb ybnoay | Bupioid nuiseyo ‘ysy e ANEETVY ssald - 6461 - ad'1100s
. bulluegoelq 9
‘Buidwes ‘Buiysy 1oj asn Jo aremy a1eb e ybnoiy) Buisijeioos ‘Bupjlem Boq Apiospa wesald —- 2861 | ‘QHO4AY 1d
. : (e1ep OU) peoy Jawwns ‘
pajosIe usaq sey e2us) Jng $8ofjou oN | PoopA sBbain eip Buiyoyem paig ‘Bujiepn ul Apiespa juesald — 9002 Vv ‘400N
Keme)eB ybnoiy L Bunjiem ‘ysy pes4 N Aptespn 8002 —8¥6) | 4 'NOATYIN
peoy PoopA . ,
m.mm,m@ u) safeleb - Buiyolem paiq ‘Bupjjiem .
Ag yied eip ‘syonp Buipssy ‘syjem aineN leshlad x ZL 800Z — 861 S ‘31337
i . . lswiwns o
Bupyord Jeny ‘Buniojdxe ‘Buifeld ul Alieq ssald - 6002 S 'ONIM
Buiydyem paiq "Bunioid Jap| ‘
‘sBop jem ‘puejpoom Aofug N jussaid — 2002 S 'AYYIM
Bupjoid Jnupsayo ‘Bupiiem Bog N Ateg juesaid - 1002 d ‘Agy3N
sjuaWWIon $S320Y buiysig asn jo asn JoO polad sweN
asn jo adA] - Aouanbaiy

Page 44



L / ERDABSTRAST @

5

D WITH ORIGINA

CERTIAED copy

190

D;"—“\‘\, OF ] \l;’ vio-

=

{

THIS

APPENDIX D:
Copy of permissive agreement dated

1994

~ T
AN AGREEMENT made the /(9 day of /VoUEwbL1c04

BETWEEN South Thames Regional Health Authority and ‘Sherwcod Park
Angling Club | |
WHEREBY:
1. South Thames Reg’icnal Health Authorﬁy agrees with effect from 17 November
1'994 for the period of 364 days
(av) to permit the members of the Sherwoad rPark Angling Club to cxercise
sole fishing rights in the lake af Sherwood Park, Tcnbridge Wells

(b) to permit members of the Club their families and friends to have access

o
g to the lake and the shores of the lake for the curpose of fishing

:: ' ; (c) to perﬁit the Club to undertake the clearance of dead wood and o’tﬁer
:‘é} rubbish from the water of the lake and to carry out repair of the overflow

3 - culvert of the lake all to the satisfaction of a duly authorised officer of South
g}; Thames Regional Health Authority

‘2:’ | (d) to provide a lock to the gate in the boundary fencing and to issue one
§ key on loan to the Club

(e) to erect a notice board near the gate stating that entry is permittcd only

to authorised persons
2. Sherwood Park Angling Club for their part agree;
(a) to be responsible for ensuring that fishing is strictly controlled and

conductéd in accordance with the Rules of thé Club and that no fl’shing takes

place in the "closed" season

(b) to supply South Thames Regional Health Authcrity with a copy of the

Club's Constitution and Rules

Page 45




(c) toensure as far as is reasonably practicable that only persons
acthorised by the Club or by South Thames Regional Health Authonty are

admitted and that fishing is restricted to members of the Club

(d) to pay the sum of £1 per annum in advance on the signing hereof in‘
. consideration of the fishing rights granted in this Agreément
3. Itis further agreed that South Thames Regional Health Authority accepts no
responsibility for the safety of persans admitted by the Angling Club and that the

Agreement may be terminated by three months' notice on either side.-

SIGNED on behalf of Sherwood Park )
Angling Club: / )

WP

W, 8. Tk PE-

Page 46




Plan showing area within

APPENDIX E

h users reside

IC

wh

ccmaom.o_mhmn b

= Fo

~h
MO et ¢

4
e
>

<

HIG 560000 DO 560250.(7(:’(“"00 560500.0‘,5‘)\')5{‘: 56‘

559250 %

%

©

| .
® 2
= O
. ¥
c ‘
) - £
et o3
© o9
0 L
—_ m Md
o Q [
a o <£©
< D =

RS

e
Tir.
vowce

T

s

=

I

NSO
2 ,@4/%\,5!0 k8

D « “ “0;
x\&VﬂM.WA . /..m/
0

aS

S

o

LRI

e
8

»m 55950004450 559750

‘0002%) o0500050SL LY ) aooomo.ocm—.“v_‘ 000000 0SC VL gopeco 00S20¥ ) 0005000050V} 00000 0SZOPE oo

P

0050000V} 0050000S26€ 1

559250.00‘)903 559500 00CA0G 559750 {000 560000.005)000 560250.DQQ000 560500 DO 560750,00&"003 561000.0{30@00 561250.{‘:()(10*’)") 561500.00-’}()00

Doanao-4-7
ayvc =7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land at the former Council Offices, Cranbrook as a new Village Green
	4 Application to register land at Sherwood Lake in Tunbridge Wells as a new Town Green

